
May 21, 2024 

Upper Mississippi River 
Basin Associa on 

170th Quarterly Mee ng 

Agenda 
with 

Background 
and 

Suppor ng 
Materials 

Hotel Blackhawk 
Davenport, Iowa 





ATTACHMENT A 
 

Minutes of the February 27, 2024 
UMRBA Quarterly Meeting  

(A-1 to A-9) 
 
 

 

 
 



Draft 
Minutes of the 169th Quarterly Meeting 

of the 
Upper Mississippi River Basin Association 

February 27, 2024 
Virtual 

Rick Pohlman called the meeƟng to order at 9:05 a.m.  ParƟcipants were as follows: 

UMRBA RepresentaƟves and Alternates: 

Rick Pohlman  Illinois Department of Natural Resources 
Loren Wobig Illinois Department of Natural Resources 
Chad CraycraŌ Illinois Department of Natural Resources 
Tim Hall Iowa Department of Natural Resources 
Jake Hansen Iowa Department of Agriculture and Land Stewardship 
Grant Wilson Minnesota Department of Natural Resources 
Patrick Phenow Minnesota Department of TransportaƟon (Virtual) 
Chris Wieberg Missouri Department of Natural Resources 
Chris Klenklen Missouri Department of Agriculture  
MaƩ Vitello  Missouri Department of ConservaƟon 
Wade Strickland Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources 

Federal UMRBA Liaisons: 

Thatch Shepard U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, MVD (on behalf of Brain Chewning)  
Mark Gaikowski U.S. Geological Survey, MidconƟnent Region (Virtual) 
Sabrina Chandler U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
Richard Vaughn  U.S. Department of Agriculture, Natural Resources ConversaƟon Service 

Others in AƩendance: 

Kirk Hansen  Iowa Department of Natural Resources 
John Seitz Illinois Department of Natural Resources 
Brian McCoy Illinois Department of TransportaƟon 
Amy Kendig Minnesota Department of Natural Resources 
Grace Loppnow Minnesota Department of Natural Resources 
Kelly Pennington Minnesota Department of Natural Resources 
Vanessa Perry  Minnesota Department of Natural Resources 
Ken Henderson Missouri Department of Agriculture  
John Frederick Missouri Department of Natural Resources 
Brenda Kelly Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (Virtual) 
Sammi Boyd Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (Virtual) 
Mike Halsted  Wisconsin Department of TransportaƟon, Harbors, and Waterways (Virtual) 
Thatch Shepard U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Mississippi Valley Division 
Jim Cole U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Mississippi Valley Division 

A-1



LeeAnn Riggs U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Mississippi Valley Division 
Samantha Thompson U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Mississippi Valley Division 
Trevor Cyphers U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, St. Paul District 
Angela Deen U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, St. Paul District 
David PoƩer U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, St. Paul District 
Nathan Wallerstedt U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, St. Paul District 
Kyle Bales U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Rock Island District 
Rachel Hawes U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Rock Island District 
Andrew Goodall U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Rock Island District 
Marshall Plumley  U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Rock Island District 
Davi Michl U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Rock Island District 
Greg Kohler U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, St. Louis District 
Joan Stemler U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, St. Louis District 
Brian Markert U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, St. Louis District 
Jake Greif U.S. Environmental ProtecƟon Agency, Office of Water 
Whitney King U.S. Environmental ProtecƟon Agency, Office of Water 
Amy Shields U.S. Environmental ProtecƟon Agency, Region 7 
Dane Boring  U.S. Environmental ProtecƟon Agency, Region 7 
Anthony Civiello U.S. Environmental ProtecƟon Agency, Region 7 
David PraƩ U.S. Environmental ProtecƟon Agency, Region 7 
John Winter U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, UMR Refuges 
Steve Winter U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, UMR Refuges 
MaƩ Mangan U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, UMR Refuges 
Kraig McPeek  U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Illinois-Iowa Field Office 
Heidi Keuler U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Illinois-Iowa Field Office 
Lauren Larson U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Illinois-Iowa Field Office  
Sara Schmuecker U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Illinois-Iowa Field Office 
David Dupre U.S. Geological Survey, Central Midwest Water Science Center 
Christopher Churchill U.S. Geological Survey, Upper Midwest Environmental Sciences Center 
Jim Fischer U.S. Geological Survey, Upper Midwest Environmental Sciences Center 
Mike Welvaert NaƟonal Oceanic and Atmospheric AdministraƟon, NWS 
Madeleine Castle Senator Josh Hawley Office (Missouri) 
John Flesher Associated Press 
Lindsay Brice Audubon  
Anshu Singh Corn Belt Ports  
Gary Loss HNTB 
Jill CraŌon Izaac Walton League 
Madeline Heim Mississippi River Ag and Water Desk/Milwaukee Journal SenƟnel 
Thomas Shepherd NaƟonal Waterways Conference 
Kim Schneider Our Mississippi 
Doug BlodgeƩ The Nature Conservancy 
Bryan Hopkins The Nature Conservancy 
Randy Smith The Nature Conservancy 
Cheyenne Young The Nature Conservancy 
Jen Armstrong Waterways Council, Inc. 
Paul Rohde Waterways Council, Inc. 
Kirsten Wallace  Upper Mississippi River Basin AssociaƟon 
Brian Stenquist Upper Mississippi River Basin AssociaƟon 

 
A-2



Mark Ellis  Upper Mississippi River Basin AssociaƟon 
Sam Hund Upper Mississippi River Basin AssociaƟon 
Natalie Lenzen Upper Mississippi River Basin AssociaƟon 
Ken Peterson Upper Mississippi River Basin AssociaƟon 
Lauren Salvato  Upper Mississippi River Basin AssociaƟon 
Andrew Stephenson  Upper Mississippi River Basin AssociaƟon 
  
Minutes  
 
Chris Wieberg moved and Grant Wilson seconded a moƟon to approve the draŌ minutes of the  
October 24, 2023 UMRBA quarterly meeƟng as provided in the agenda packet.  The moƟon was approved 
unanimously.    
 
ExecuƟve Director’s Report 
 
Kirsten Wallace pointed to the ExecuƟve Director’s report in the agenda packet for a summary of the 
AssociaƟon’s work efforts since the October 2023 meeƟng.  Wallace elaborated on the following key 
events and UMRBA products: 
 
 UMRBA has invested considerable staff resources advocaƟng for UMRBA’s prioriƟes in the 

forthcoming Water Resources Development Act as well as the 2024 and 2025 federal appropriaƟons 
measures.  

 The NaƟonal Waterways FoundaƟon and Waterways Council released renewed economic profiles of 
the inland waterways for states that border the rivers.  The reports are accessible here:  
hƩps://naƟonalwaterwaysfoundaƟon.org/foundaƟon-studies/economic-impact-by-state.     

 On January 9, 2024, UMRBA published the report Ɵtled, How Clean is the River?  The report finds 
that water quality between 1989 and 2018 has generally improved, while there are pollutants of 
concern that have varying trends.  The results support UMRBA’s current focus on nutrients, chloride, 
and emerging contaminants as well as unified, Clean Water Act-focused monitoring on the river.  the 
report is available here:  hƩps://umrba.org/howcleanriver  

 UMRBA is partnering with the University of Minnesota InsƟtute on the Environment (IonE) and the 
NaƟonal Weather Service as they combine several exisƟng models into downscale hydroclimaƟc 
predicƟons for the Upper Mississippi River basin.  As a partner to them, UMRBA convened three 
facilitated meeƟngs during November 2023 and December 2023 to increase the usability of the 
hydroclimaƟc forecasts and idenƟfy effecƟve product delivery mechanisms to facilitate usability of 
hydroclimaƟc forecasts.  

 
UMRBA Personnel Manual 
 
Wallace reported that the UMRBA Board has established a renewed organizaƟonal structure and 
compensaƟon system for the AssociaƟon.  On behalf of the AssociaƟon’s staff, Wallace expressed 
graƟtude to the Board for beƩer posiƟoning the AssociaƟon to maintain our strong team of staff and to 
grow our team.  On February 22, 2024, Wallace submiƩed to the Board a revised draŌ Personnel Manual 
capturing the renewed compensaƟon rates as well as the Board’s new established processes for annual 
reviews and adjustments.  In response, Wade Strickland moved and Chris Weiberg seconded a moƟon to 

 
A-3



amend UMRBA’s Personnel Manual in accordance with the annotated version provided to the Board on 
February 22, 2024 by Wallace.  The moƟon was approved unanimously. 
 
UMRBA AdministraƟve Protocols 
 
Wallace explained that UMRBA has long held informal protocols for accounƟng of the AssociaƟon’s i) 
equipment and ii) grants, cooperaƟve agreements and contracts.  In the recent process of finalizing a 
cooperaƟve agreement, USEPA requested formal documentaƟon of the Board’s approval of these 
protocols.  In response to Wallace’s request, Tim Hall moved and Grant Wilson seconded a moƟon to 
accept the proposed administraƟve protocols related to equipment and grants, cooperaƟve agreements, 
and contracts as provided to the Board on February 22, 2024 by Kirsten Wallace.  The moƟon was 
approved unanimously. 
 
UMRBA Financial Report 
 
Wallace pointed to UMRBA’s October 2023 through December 2023 financial statements provided on 
pages B-9 to B-17 of the agenda packet.  Chris Wieberg moved and Wade Strickland seconded the moƟon 
to accept the AssociaƟon’s budget report and balance sheet as included in the agenda packet.  The 
moƟon was approved unanimously. 
 
UMRBA Board Chair RotaƟon 
 
Kirsten Wallace thanked Rick Pohlman for his service as Board Chair over the past year.  Chris Wieberg 
moved and Tim Hall seconded a moƟon to nominate Grant Wilson to serve as UMRBA Chair, Wade 
Strickland to serve as UMRBA Vice Chair, and Jason Tidemann to serve as UMRBA Treasurer.  The moƟon 
for all three nominaƟons carried unanimously by voice vote. 
 
Interbasin Diversion ConsultaƟon 
 
Kirsten Wallace explained that the Governors’ 1989 Upper Mississippi River Basin Charter sets forth a 
noƟficaƟon and consultaƟon process for any new or increased water diversion out of the basin that would 
exceed an average of 5 million gallons per day during any 30-day period.  At their February annual 
meeƟngs, UMRBA members are to report on any qualifying diversion requests.  The UMRBA member 
states reported as follows: 
 

Illinois — Rick Pohlman — no diversions to report 
Iowa — Tim Hall — no diversions to report 
Minnesota — Grant Wilson — no diversions to report 
Missouri — Chris Weiberg — no diversions to report 
Wisconsin — Wade Strickland — no diversions to report 

 
Pohlman directed Kirsten Wallace to send leƩers to the Governors reporƟng the results of the annual 
diversion consultaƟon. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
A-4



Upper Mississippi River Basin Hydrologic Outlook 
 
Mike Welvaert provided an outlook for the potenƟal of spring flooding or drought in the Upper Mississippi 
River and in the watershed in spring 2024.  Welvaert announced that NWS North Central River Forecast 
Center published the spring outlook in a storymap, linked here:  
hƩps://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/746318e235604583934a78c639e19946.  Welvaert highlighted key 
messages from the outlook. 
 
NavigaƟon Water Level ForecasƟng in the St. Louis District 
 
Joan Stemler presented an overview of low water condiƟons and operaƟons in the St. Louis District.  In 
summer 2024, the Mississippi River surpassed 10 daily low water level records at the St. Louis gage and 20 
daily low water level records (occurring consecuƟvely) in September.  Stemler reported on the St. Louis 
District’s low water operaƟons, parƟcularly in the including related to the approved deviaƟon to hold the 
Mel Price pool to 0.5 feet above the maximum regulated pool.  The extra water storage can be used to 
provide a pulse of water to free grounded tows, if necessary.  The Corps will incorporate these low-water 
operaƟons into the District’s Water Control Manual.  Stemler discussed planned acƟons should low water 
condiƟons conƟnue. 
 
Inland Waterway Trust Fund 
 
Jen Armstrong provided an overview of the status and projecƟons of the Inland Waterways Trust Fund 
(IWTF), which provides a 35 percent cost-share match to the new construcƟon and major rehabilitaƟon of 
inland waterways projects.  Between FY 2014 to 2023, seven lock replacement projects were funding 
through regular appropriaƟons; 90 percent of the appropriated funding were consumed by four projects, 
three of which are ongoing today.  The Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) started two new 
inland waterways construcƟon projects, including L&D 25. 
 
The cumulaƟve authorized costs of the ongoing projects and cost overruns of several projects that were 
intended to be fully funded in the IIJA is $3.13 billion.  However, cost overruns for several reasons has 
increased the esƟmated costs for the projects to $7.84 billion.  AccounƟng for funds received, the 
remaining costs to complete the ongoing projects is $2.61 billion.  Armstrong noted that these costs are 
anƟcipated to conƟnue to increase.  As an example, the current esƟmated cost of L&D 25 is listed as $1.5 
billion, however that cost will need to be adjusted upward given the AdministraƟon’s decision not to allow 
for early contractor involvement and conƟnuing contracts. 
 
Armstrong explained that the $2.61 billion balance exceeds the capacity of the IWTF’s reserves.  If the 
Corps received $290 million annually for inland navigaƟon construcƟon projects, it would take 9 years to 
fund the known remaining costs for all ongoing construcƟon projects.  Incremental funding and long 
project implementaƟon Ɵmelines increase overall project cost and delays the benefits of the project. 
 
Armstrong put forward that there is no capability for NESP lock modernizaƟon projects in FY 2025 that can 
be supported with what is available in the IWTF given the other inland navigaƟon construcƟon needs.  No 
new starts can be accommodated unƟl some of the ongoing projects are completed.  The impact of 
starƟng new projects is that the costs for all inland navigaƟon projects be on the order of magnitude of 
new construcƟon project at Olmstead L&D, which cost over $3 billion. 
 

 
A-5



Armstrong explained the Waterways Council’s request to Congress that the construcƟon cost share for 
inland waterways projects funded by the IIJA to remain fully federally funded.  Waterways Council remains 
commiƩed to defending against adverse iniƟaƟves, such as user fees or taxes, to resolve the discrepancy 
between revenues to the IWTF and the cost-share expense demands. 
 
In follow up to a quesƟon from Brian Stenquist, Armstrong explained that Corps Headquarters is renewing 
the inland navigaƟon capital investment strategy.  The strategy shall provide a near-term and 10-year 
implementaƟon schedule with anƟcipated costs in each year. 
  
Upper Mississippi River RestoraƟon Program  
 
Marshall Plumley said UMRR has received $55 million in FY 2023 for the first Ɵme and anƟcipates 
receiving that same appropriaƟon in FY 2024.  The program has the potenƟal to expand further following 
Congress’s acƟon in WRDA 2022 that increased its annual authorized appropriaƟon to $90 million –  
i.e., $75 million for HREPs and $15 million for LTRM.  Plumley applauded the partnership for this 
recogniƟon by Congress.   
 
Plumley reported on several ongoing efforts, including strategic planning, LTRM implementaƟon planning, 
planning for a UMRR workshop, HREP selecƟon, and topobathy acquisiƟon.  Plumley reviewed the 
ongoing implementaƟon of HREPs in each of the three UMR Corps Districts.  Plumley elaborated on the 
topobathy acquisiƟon; the vision is for a systemic acquisiƟon of criƟcal elevaƟon datasets to allow 
partners and resource managers to beƩer study the priority science, restoraƟon, and management needs 
of the UMRS. 
 
NavigaƟon and Ecosystem Sustainability Program 
 
Andrew Goodall provided an update on the progress of NESP in advancing programmaƟc acƟviƟes, 
hosƟng groundbreakings, and advancing the navigaƟon and ecosystem projects.  NESP currently has 18 
ongoing projects; 18 projects are ecosystem-related investments and 13 are navigaƟon-related 
investments.  Highlights are as follows: 
 
 L&D 22 fish passage:  Design for the enƟre project is scheduled to be completed in April 2024.  A 

construcƟon award is planned to occur before September 2024.  Pre-construcƟon monitoring 
conƟnues that will inform adapƟve management goals. 

 L&D 25 1,200-foot chamber:  Design work for L&D 25 is anƟcipated to be complete in June 2026.  
Following the decision not to allow for early contractor involvement/conƟnuing contractors, the 
Corps has recently segmented the design into smaller packages for bulkheads and other advance 
items.  Phase 1 construcƟon contract is scheduled to be completed in 2024.  The bulkhead 
fabricaƟon contract was awarded just yesterday – i.e., February 26, 2024.  Goodall confirmed that 
the cerƟfied total project cost for L&D 25 will be released soon. 

 La Grange L&D 1,200-foot chamber:  The design of the addiƟon of a 1,200-foot lock chamber at La 
Grange L&D is anƟcipated to be completed in FY 2026.  The Corps is scheduled to complete the 35 
percent design phase in the 2024 calendar year. 

 
In response to a quesƟon from Rick Pohlman, Goodall confirmed that the Corps is prepared with smaller 
construcƟon packages for the La Grange L&D project for when there are funding opportuniƟes. 
 

 
A-6



Minnesota Invasive Carp Management 
 
Kelly Pennington explained that the migraƟon of invasive carp upstream on the Mississippi River into 
Minnesota waters is facilitated by high water events, parƟcularly in 2019 and 2023.  Data collected from 
captured invasive carp suggest that the invasive carp were produced downstream.  More than 40 tagged 
fish were tracked moving into Minnesota past open dams during 2023 flooding.  Pennington pointed out 
that, which lock deterrents can help reduce invasive species passage through the lock, invasive carp can 
sƟll migrate through the lock spillways when the gates are open (and the gates are opened during 
flooding). 
 
Minnesota DNR has been acƟvely managing invasive carp since the early 2000s through a variety of 
means.  Pennington announced that, in addiƟon to various state and federal funding sources, the 
Minnesota Lessard-Sams Outdoor Heritage Council allocated $12 million to a carp barrier on the 
Mississippi River at L&D 5. 
 
In 2024, Minnesota DNR updated its invasive carp management acƟon plan in light of increased captures 
of invasive carp (associated with high water events) and new technologies, methods, and knowledge.  The 
Minnesota DNR employed a structured decision making process that was facilitated by USGS and involved 
technical experts and stakeholders from more than 12 organizaƟons.  Minnesota DNR concluded that no 
one acƟon is sufficient to prevent and manage invasive carp.  Pennington described the 2024 acƟon plan’s 
five key elements and the associated acƟons.  The key elements are monitoring to support response 
acƟons, prevenƟon and deterrence, response preparaƟon, management and control, and communicaƟon, 
outreach, and coordinaƟon. 
 
Rick Pohlman and Wade Strickland expressed appreciaƟon for the briefing and acknowledged similar 
challenges within their respecƟve states.  In response to a quesƟon from Strickland about selecƟve 
deterrents, Grace Loppnow explained that preliminary data indicate that electric barriers have a 90 
percent efficacy of deterring invasive carp (without impacƟng naƟve fish species) and acousƟc barriers 
have a 50 percent efficacy. 
 
In response to a quesƟon from Brian Stenquist, Pennington and Loppnow said other invasive species that 
might warrant interstate, federal-state collaboraƟon are northern snakehead and Prussian carp.  In 
response to a quesƟon from Mark Ellis, Loppnow stated that Minnesota DNR is collaboraƟng with USGS to 
develop a FluEgg model for each Mississippi River pool located in Minnesota.  The models should be 
available by the end of calendar year 2024.  In response to a quesƟon from Loren Wobig, Loppnow said the 
University of Minnesota – Duluth is researching the efficacy of carbon dioxide as a deterrent to invasive 
carp migraƟon.  It is not as selecƟve to invasive carp but is sƟll being considered as a deterrent tool.   
 
In response to a quesƟon from Jill CraŌon, Loppnow explained that Minnesota DNR is focusing this year 
on modeling potenƟal reproducƟon areas as a means for informing work decisions (e.g., disrupƟng 
spawning), collecƟng monitoring data, and evaluaƟng the efficacy of deterrent opƟons that are selecƟve 
to naƟve fish or that opƟmize flow through spillway gates.  Pennington added that Minnesota DNR is 
coordinaƟng with the Corp for design and engineering experƟse on a potenƟal deterrent at L&D 5. 
 
Minnesota Wetlands Status and Trends 
 
Amy Kendig provided contextual informaƟon of Minnesota’s wetlands loss from 1800 to 1984 (about 50 
percent statewide and 18 percent occurring in the Prairie Pothole Region) and wetlands protecƟon 

 
A-7



regulaƟons in Minnesota.  The Minnesota Wetland ConservaƟon Act of 1981 created a “no-net loss” 
policy for wetlands.  Kendig explained that the quanƟty and extend of wetlands challenging to assess and 
track for mulƟple reasons.  
 
Minnesota DNR created a wetlands status and trends monitoring program that was modeled from 
USFWS’s wetlands monitoring.  Since 2006, Minnesota has been monitoring 1,200 – 3,750 one-square 
mile plots every three years.  This sample is extrapolated to esƟmate statewide status and trends. 
 
Minnesota DNR’s monitoring data suggests that the drivers for change in wetlands quanƟty and extent are 
occurring because of restoraƟon, filling or drainage, excavaƟon or inundaƟon, beaver acƟviƟes, landslides, 
and stream accreƟon or movement.  Indirect factors include subsurface Ɵle drainage (without visual 
evidence), long term climate change, and lowered ground table levels. 
 
The recent monitoring observed a net gain of 43,389 acres of wetland area between 2006 and 2020.  
Kendig provided more detail informaƟon about the gains and losses per wetland type and sources of the 
gains or losses.  The gains in wetlands area has significantly increased during the latest monitoring cycle -
i.e., approximately 25,900 acres from 2015 to 2020. 
 
Kendig concluded that, over a 15-year period, Minnesota gained more wetlands than it lost and wetland 
losses have generally declined over Ɵme.  Direct gains increased with more antecedent precipitaƟon.  
Minnesota DNR is interested in explore the reason for that.  Does more precipitaƟon iniƟate wetland 
creaƟon or restoraƟon?  Does more precipitaƟon make wetland creaƟon or restoraƟon more obvious?  Or 
is there a another or different reason? 
 
Gulf Hypoxia Program 
 
Hypoxia Task Force 2023 Report to Congress 
 
Jake Greif provided an overview of the Mississippi River/Gulf of Mexico Hypoxia Task Force, including its 
origins, scope, acƟon plans, and goals.   
 
Graif reported that, on November 30, 2023, USEPA transmiƩed to Congress the most recent report on the 
River/Gulf of Mexico Hypoxia Task Force.  The report is available at the following web link:  
hƩps://www.epa.gov/system/files/documents/2023-11/10305_2023-hƞ-report-to-congress_508.pdf.  
 
Graif welcomed partners to explore the USEPA’s web page for the Task Force (hƩps://www.epa.gov/ms-hƞ).  
Monthly newsleƩers for the Task Force are available at hƩps://www.epa.gov/ms-hƞ/hypoxia-task-force-
newsleƩers.  The web page includes a link to sign up for receiving the newsleƩers to individual emails. 
 
UMR Sub-Basin CommiƩee Work Plan 
 
Lauren Salvato reported that USEPA approved UMRBA’s work plan for supporƟng the Hypoxia Task Force 
Upper Mississippi River Sub-Basin CommiƩee, including the following tasks: 
 
 Create an integrated Upper Mississippi River Nutrient ReducƟon Strategy, compiling separate state 

nutrient reducƟon strategies and idenƟfying important interstate acƟons. 

 
A-8



 Develop an Upper Mississippi River Basin Nutrient ReducƟon AdapƟve Management Framework, 
evaluaƟng implementaƟon of important interstate acƟons to reduce nutrient polluƟon in the Upper 
Mississippi River and incorporaƟng insights into ongoing implementaƟon efforts. 

 Create an Upper Mississippi River Interstate CommunicaƟons Strategy, communicaƟng with 
stakeholders and other actors in the basin about important interstate acƟons and to gain their 
commitment to ongoing implementaƟon efforts. 

 Maintain and enhance interstate collaboraƟon by supporƟng the HTF Sub-Basin CommiƩee, 
including its various work teams. 

 Integrate important interstate acƟons for reducing nutrient polluƟon in the Upper Mississippi River 
with other important interstate acƟons such as flood miƟgaƟon and resilience planning. 

 
Other Business 
 
Future MeeƟng Schedule  
 
May 2024 in Davenport, Iowa 

 UMRBA Quarterly MeeƟng – May 21 

 UMRR CoordinaƟng CommiƩee quarterly meeƟng – May 22 
 
August 2024 in St. Paul, Minnesota 

 UMRBA Quarterly MeeƟng – August 6 

 UMRR CoordinaƟng CommiƩee quarterly meeƟng – August 7 
 
November 2024 in St. Louis, Missouri  

 UMRBA Quarterly MeeƟng – November 19 

 UMRR CoordinaƟng CommiƩee quarterly meeƟng – November 20 
 
With no further business, the meeƟng adjourned at 2:25 p.m. 
 

 
A-9





















B-9



B-10



Coalition Support for USGS Streamgage 
Networks and Modernization  

Congressman Mike Simpson, Chair 

Congresswoman Chellie Pingree, Ranking Member 

House Appropriations Subcommittee on Interior, Environment & Related Agencies 

2363 Rayburn House Office Building 

Washington, D.C. 20515 

February 23, 2024 

RE: WATER DATA & SCIENCE PROGRAM FUNDING 

Interior Department Appropriations for FY2025 

Summary of Coalition’s Requests for FY2025: 
Federal Priorities Streamgages = $33.0 M 

Cooperative Matching Funds Program = $68M 
(includes $33M streamgage support and studies) 

NGWOS/data modernization = $35M 

Dear Chairman Simpson and Ranking Member Pingree: 

Our coalition of 99 water management and use stakeholders requests your support to 

sufficiently fund the United States Geological Survey’s (USGS) Federal Priorities Streamgage 

network and related programs for the upcoming Fiscal Year (FY) 2025 budget 

appropriation.   

Our organizations rely heavily on these streamgages to make critical decisions about public 

safety, respond to extreme weather events, conservation and to support the nation’s 

economy. The information they provide is extensive and invaluable for managing, 

protecting, and planning to support and improve the resilience of the nation’s important 

water resource infrastructure. Funding for the network needs to keep pace with inflation so 

that the information from this network continues to be available for many different 

purposes.  

Our coalition’s funding request is summarized below. The final section of this letter 

explains in more detail why we as a nation need to adequately fund the network of 

streamgages. 

Summary of funding request 

Our broad coalition of state agencies, interstate commissions, associations, universities, 

non-governmental organizations, and private industry submit the FY 2025 USGS budget 

appropriation request as follows: $33M dedicated to Federal Priorities Streamgages, $68M 

for the Cooperative Matching Funds Program (including $33M for streamgage support) and 

$35M for Next Generation Water Observing System and data delivery modernization.  

B-11



Supporting details 

Federal Priority Streamgages (FPS) -- $33M 

Operational costs of the FPS network nationwide have grown by an average of 

approximately 5 percent per year since 2016, totaling $3M. With further inflation expected, 

operational costs are estimated to increase at least another 5-7 percent. As a result, the 

increased costs associated with the operation and physical maintenance and data services 

and distribution have resulted in a $1M per year shortfall since 2022. Our request for FY 

2025 FPS funding of $33M covers the costs of existing gages, precludes the loss of any 

streamgage sites, offsets the impact of inflation and allows for the installation of 30 new 

FPS sites to close the gap in streamflow data where they are crucially needed (see next 

section). 

Cooperative Matching Funds (CMF) Program -- $68M 

The USGS works with more than 1,400 partners nationwide (federal, state, tribal, local and 

non-governmental organizations) using CMF to jointly support additional streamgages that 

cannot be funded through the FPS. This matching program began as a 50/50 cost share but 

has seen the federal contributions decrease to less than 30 percent over time. Our request 

of $68 M for FY 2025 stands firm with last year’s request.1 These funds are needed to 

provide the required cooperative matching funds.  Of that, $33M is dedicated for the 

protection of the approximately 5,275 CMF-supported streamgages, already established 

and functioning nationwide.  

Next Generation Water Observing System (NGWOS) – $35M 

Our coalition appreciates Congress’ support of the Next Generation Water Observation 

System (NGWOS) at the same level as the past two years of $35M to allow to continue the 

NGWOS program as intended. Funding at this level for FY2025 would allow USGS to 

continue development of Integrated Water Science (IWS) tools and science, applicable 

nationwide, in the fifth of ten planned demonstration water basins.  

Why are USGS Streamgage network data especially important now? 

It is more important than ever for Congress to ensure adequate funding for the USGS 

Streamgage Program. Short duration high intensity precipitation events are increasing in 

occurrence and volume creating flooding issues across the country and adding 

unpredictability to communities’ abilities to plan for and fund water infrastructure 

investments. Extreme events such as flooding, drought and sea level rise in coastal regions 

1 See USGS FY2024 Streamgage Support Letter dated February 28, 2023: https://icwp.org/wp-
content/uploads/2023/04/USGS-Streamgage-Letter-FY2024_Senate-Approps_2.28.23.pdf  

B-12

https://icwp.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/USGS-Streamgage-Letter-FY2024_Senate-Approps_2.28.23.pdf
https://icwp.org/wp-content/uploads/2023/04/USGS-Streamgage-Letter-FY2024_Senate-Approps_2.28.23.pdf


are reasons why a robust streamgage network is an essential resource for water managers 

to plan and act under pressing conditions. 

Without increased funding to maintain the current network of USGS streamgage sites, we 

are less equipped to make informed decisions pertaining to navigation, flood and 

hurricane risk predictions, drought determinations, and water supply forecasts. 

Streamgage data are crucial for use in decision making tools to provide critical life and 

property saving information. They augment research management decisions, maintain 

water dependent infrastructure, and provide essential public health and environmental 

condition information. Insufficient funding seriously compromises our national ability to 

address federal, state, tribal, local socioeconomic issues, including international treaty 

obligations. 

The 2022 USGS Streamflow Monitoring Network analysis determined priority areas to 

maintain or improve coverage, resolution, and representation throughout the United 

States.2 This analysis identified gaps in network coverage that, if further built out by 

establishing new streamgage sites, would enhance resilience to extreme weather events. 

These areas include coastal watersheds to reduce flood risk, regions in 39 states that lack 

streamflow information to assess how local climate is affecting floods and droughts, and 

areas of the U.S. where water supply is vulnerable due to reduced snowpack conditions. 

Conclusion 

With your help and continued support, Congress can enable the USGS to fulfill its Water 

Resources Mission Area goals by adequately funding the Federal Priority Streamgages 

network, Cooperative Matching Funds program, and NGWOS to move water science into 

the 21st century.   

We are happy to answer your questions. For more background information about funding 

and the utility of the national streamflow information program from stakeholders’ 

perspectives, visit ICWP’s website: https://icwp.org/streamgage-support/. 

Please contact any of us or Beth Callaway at the Interstate Council on Water Policy at: 

beth@icwp.org or (307) 772-1999.  

CC: 
Appropriations Subcommittee Members  

Secretary of the Interior  

Director, Office of Management and Budget 

Director, US Geological Survey

2 Konrad, C.P., Anderson, S.W., Restivo, D.E., and David, J.E., 2022, Network Analysis of USGS 

Streamflow Gages: U.S. Geological Survey data release, https://doi.org/10.5066/P9C8NYTO. 

B-13

https://icwp.org/streamgage-support/
mailto:beth@icwp.org
https://doi.org/10.5066/P9C8NYTO








67HB
Rectangle



Upper Mississippi River Basin Association
FY 2024 Profit & Loss Budget Overview

July 2023 - June 2024

Accrual Basis  Tuesday, May 7, 2024 09:38 AM GMT-05:00   1/3

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET

Revenue

4000 State Dues

Illinois Dues 67,000.00 67,000.00 0.00

Iowa Dues 67,000.00 67,000.00 0.00

Minnesota Dues 67,000.00 67,000.00 0.00

Missouri Dues 67,000.00 67,000.00 0.00

Wisconsin Dues 67,000.00 67,000.00 0.00

WQ Assessment 108,000.00 108,000.00 0.00

Total 4000 State Dues 443,000.00 443,000.00 0.00

4100 Contracts and Grants

Interstate WQ Pilot 9,931.36 0.00 9,931.36

U.S. FWS 7,958.51 7,958.51

University of Minnesota 10,000.00 10,000.00

USACE (NESP) 30,537.17 200,000.00 -169,462.83

USACE (UMRR) 39,400.00 135,500.00 -96,100.00

USEPA (HTF) 75,000.00 -75,000.00

USEPA (OPA) 221,066.47 240,000.00 -18,933.53

USEPA (OWOW) 36,198.22 80,000.00 -43,801.78

USGS Nature-Based Solutions 50,000.00 -50,000.00

Total 4100 Contracts and Grants 355,091.73 780,500.00 -425,408.27

4200 Interest Income

Short Term Interest

Short Term (CD) 14,552.02 17,300.00 -2,747.98

Short Term (Checking) 4,235.46 6,000.00 -1,764.54

Short Term (Savings) 0.00 0.00

Short Term (Sweep) 2,404.69 8,400.00 -5,995.31

Total Short Term Interest 21,192.17 31,700.00 -10,507.83

Total 4200 Interest Income 21,192.17 31,700.00 -10,507.83

4300 Other Income

Meeting Meals Income 80.00 80.00

Workshop Meals Income 962.43 962.43

Total 4300 Other Income 1,042.43 1,042.43

Total Revenue $820,326.33 $1,255,200.00 $ -434,873.67

GROSS PROFIT $820,326.33 $1,255,200.00 $ -434,873.67

Expenditures

5001 Payroll Expenses

Benefits -5,480.34 -5,480.34

ICHRA 867.58 867.58

Salary 625,473.81 810,383.77 -184,909.96

SocSec Company -1,472.38 -1,472.38

Taxes 49,920.34 62,017.30 -12,096.96

SUTA (Minnesota UC) -2.21 405.34 -407.55

B-18



Upper Mississippi River Basin Association
FY 2024 Profit & Loss Budget Overview

July 2023 - June 2024

Accrual Basis  Tuesday, May 7, 2024 09:38 AM GMT-05:00   2/3

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET

Workforce Enhancement Fee -2.21 405.34 -407.55

Total Taxes 49,915.92 62,827.98 -12,912.06

Total 5001 Payroll Expenses 669,304.59 873,211.75 -203,907.16

5002 Benefits Administration 1,740.00 1,000.00 740.00

5100 Space Rental

Office Rental 59,147.51 55,089.00 4,058.51

Total 5100 Space Rental 59,147.51 55,089.00 4,058.51

5101 Legal and Financial

Bank Charges 40.00 -40.00

Insurance 2,249.35 6,200.00 -3,950.65

Legal and Tax Services 3,085.00 5,000.00 -1,915.00

Total 5101 Legal and Financial 5,334.35 11,240.00 -5,905.65

5102 Telephone/Communications 11,727.16 8,000.00 3,727.16

5103 Communications/Publications 75,165.00 50,000.00 25,165.00

5104 Equipment

Equipment (Maint./Rental) 811.06 1,000.00 -188.94

Equipment (Purchase) 4,241.92 4,241.92

Total 5104 Equipment 5,052.98 1,000.00 4,052.98

5105 Supplies 1,602.33 5,000.00 -3,397.67

5106 Postage 118.13 200.00 -81.87

5107 Other Services 15,355.00 10,000.00 5,355.00

5200 Meeting Expenses 24,989.03 50,000.00 -25,010.97

5201 Travel 33,562.55 50,000.00 -16,437.45

5202 State Travel Reimbursement

Illinois 958.80 5,000.00 -4,041.20

Iowa 388.98 5,000.00 -4,611.02

Minnesota 352.80 5,000.00 -4,647.20

Missouri 1,000.08 5,000.00 -3,999.92

State WQ Travel 494.39 3,500.00 -3,005.61

Wisconsin 5,000.00 -5,000.00

Total 5202 State Travel Reimbursement 3,195.05 28,500.00 -25,304.95

5300 USGS Nature-Based Solutions

Other Contractual Services 30,000.00 -30,000.00

UMRBA Contractual Services 8,000.00 -8,000.00

Total 5300 USGS Nature-Based Solutions 38,000.00 -38,000.00

5301 OPA Expenses

Equipment (Maint./Rental) OPA 530.10 6,500.00 -5,969.90

Equipment OPA 4,186.46 1,000.00 3,186.46

Other OPA 50.00 -50.00

Travel OPA 2,170.15 2,000.00 170.15

Total 5301 OPA Expenses 6,886.71 9,550.00 -2,663.29

5302 USEPA NRS Workshops

B-19



Upper Mississippi River Basin Association
FY 2024 Profit & Loss Budget Overview

July 2023 - June 2024

Accrual Basis  Tuesday, May 7, 2024 09:38 AM GMT-05:00   3/3

TOTAL

ACTUAL BUDGET OVER BUDGET

Communications 600.00 3,900.00 -3,300.00

Meeting Expenses 4,518.26 40,000.00 -35,481.74

Supplies 100.00 -100.00

Travel 163.71 4,700.00 -4,536.29

Travel Assistance 6,841.38 10,000.00 -3,158.62

Total 5302 USEPA NRS Workshops 12,123.35 58,700.00 -46,576.65

5999 Miscellaneous Expense 0.00 0.00

Total Expenditures $925,303.74 $1,249,490.75 $ -324,187.01

NET OPERATING REVENUE $ -104,977.41 $5,709.25 $ -110,686.66

NET REVENUE $ -104,977.41 $5,709.25 $ -110,686.66

B-20



Upper Mississippi River Basin Association
Balance Sheet
As of May 7, 2024

Accrual Basis  Tuesday, May 7, 2024 09:41 AM GMT-05:00   1/2

TOTAL

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

Checking HT 2732 178,375.92

Investment

CD_2 50,000.00

Sweep HT 5401 313,060.32

Total Investment 363,060.32

Total Bank Accounts $541,436.24

Accounts Receivable

Contract/grants

Invoiced/Billable 33,792.48

Total Contract/grants 33,792.48

Total Accounts Receivable $33,792.48

Other Current Assets

Prepaid Expense 8.00

Office Rental Prepaid Expense 8,244.10

Total Prepaid Expense 8,252.10

Total Other Current Assets $8,252.10

Total Current Assets $583,480.82

Fixed Assets

604(b) Equipment 568.95

Accum. Deprec. 604(b) -568.95

Accum. Deprec. OPA -23,004.15

Accum. Deprec. STC -2,989.68

Accum. Deprec. UMRBA -32,789.73

Accum. Deprec. WQ -1,290.00

OPA Equipment 28,205.12

STC Equipment 4,332.67

UMRBA Equipment 100,330.13

WQ Equipment 1,290.47

Total Fixed Assets $74,084.83

TOTAL ASSETS $657,565.65

B-21



Upper Mississippi River Basin Association
Balance Sheet
As of May 7, 2024

Accrual Basis  Tuesday, May 7, 2024 09:41 AM GMT-05:00   2/2

TOTAL

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Credit Cards

Visa Chase 5294 1,897.66

Total Credit Cards $1,897.66

Other Current Liabilities

Deferred MO DoC (WLM) Revenue 4,206.05

Office Expense Liabilities

Travel Expense 1,619.60

Total Office Expense Liabilities 1,619.60

Payroll Liabilities -695.34

Accrued Vacation 51,656.55

Accrued Vacation FICA 3,951.71

Federal Withholding 189.00

Medicare

Medicare Company 39.17

Medicare Employee 39.17

Total Medicare 78.34

Minnesota Withholding -1,113.17

MN Income Tax 1,206.17

MN Unemployment Taxes 46.38

Social Security

SocSec Company 167.50

SocSec Employee 167.50

Total Social Security 335.00

SUTA (Minnesota UC) 325.51

Workforce Enhancement Fee 334.97

Total Payroll Liabilities 56,315.12

Total Other Current Liabilities $62,140.77

Total Current Liabilities $64,038.43

Total Liabilities $64,038.43

Equity

Retained Earnings 698,504.63

Net Revenue -104,977.41

Total Equity $593,527.22

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $657,565.65

B-22



ATTACHMENT C 
 

USFWS Upper Mississippi River Refuge  
100th Anniversary 

 
 USFWS News Release (3/12/2024) (C-1)    

 Milwaukee Journal Sentinel News Story (2/27/2024) (C-2 to C-4) 

 Centennial Planning Committee and Partners Website:  
https://uppermiss100.com/History_1924.html  

 
 
 

 
 

https://uppermiss100.com/History_1924.html


C-1



C-2



C-3



C-4









































































































67HB
Rectangle

67HB
Rectangle



67HB
Rectangle



67HB
Rectangle



67HB
Rectangle





67HB
Rectangle

67HB
Rectangle



67HB
Rectangle



67HB
Rectangle



67HB
Rectangle



67HB
Rectangle



67HB
Rectangle



67HB
Rectangle



67HB
Rectangle


	A. Minutes of the February 27, 2024 UMRBA Quarterly Meeting
	B. Executive Director’s Report
	C. USFWS Upper Mississippi River Refuge100th Anniversary
	D. UMR Flow Frequency Study Information Paper
	E. USACE Memo Regarding Navigation and Ecosystem Sustainability Program Advisory Panel
	F. USACE Agency Specific Procedures for Principles, Requirements, and Guidelines
	G. ASA(CW) Connor Waters and Wetlands Memo
	H. Additional Items



